
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
   “Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

HQ Lacey Gambling Commission – Rainier Room 1st Floor 
*SKYPE Meeting *

(360) 407-3828            Pin Code 602028 
Thursday, April 9, 2020, 10:00 AM 

Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair.  
Commissioners may take action on business items. 

Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  

PUBLIC MEETING 
Tab 1 

10:00 AM 
Call to Order  Bud Sizemore, Chair

*Consent Agenda          (Action) 
• March 13, 2020 Commission Meeting Minutes
• New Licenses and Class III Employees

Director’s Report 
• Strategic Plan Progress Report     David Trujillo, Director 

Tab 2 Presentation         (Action) 
• Skokomish Indian Tribe Compact Amendment Hearing

 Honorable Tom Strong, Vice Chair, Skokomish Tribal Council 
   David Trujillo, WSGC Director 

Julie Lies, WSGC Tribal Liaison 
To provide public comments submit an email to: compactcomments@wsgc.wa.gov  

no later than close of business on April 8th, 2020.  
Tab 3 Presentation 

• Financial Status
 Christopher Stanley, Chief Financial Officer 

Public Comment 

Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public                         Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Discuss potential agency litigation with legal counsel, including tribal negotiations. 

Adjourn 

Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend Commission meetings. 
Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant 
at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Please silence your cell phones for the public meeting

mailto:compactcomments@wsgc.wa.gov
https://lync.wa.gov/wsgc.wa.gov/meet/julie.anderson/K1WMYV50


 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

March Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
Hilton Garden Inn  

2101 Henderson Park Lane S.E. 
Olympia, WA 98501 

Public Meeting  
March 13, 2020 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson (Via phone)                                                               
Ed Troyer  
Alicia Levy (Via phone) 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Jeff Holy 
Representative Shelley Kloba 

 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Executive Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; Brian Considine, Legal and 
Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; 
Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant; and Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General (via 
phone).  
 
Executive Session 
Chair Sizemore called the meeting to order at 8:40 AM and announced that the next 2 hours 
would be dedicated to executive session, where the commissioners would discuss potential 
agency litigation, including tribal negotiations. He announced that the public meeting would 
reconvene at 11:00 AM.  
Executive Session adjourned at 10:40 AM.  
 
Public Meeting Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone back from executive session and began the public meeting 
at 11:06 AM. Chair Sizemore acknowledged a moment of silence to recognize law enforcement 
officers who were lost in the line of duty since our last meeting. 
 
There were five people in the audience.  
 
Tab 1 
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve the consent agenda as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 3:0 
Commissioner Levy had not yet joined the meeting.  
 
Director’s Report  
Director Trujillo gave a short report on the Coronavirus Pandemic and the plans the agency has 
in place so far. He stressed that the agency would post regular updates on our website regarding 
potential adjustments to operating hours. He reminded everyone that March is Problem 



2 
 

Gambling Awareness Month and that the Problem Gambling Taskforce is planning to meet on 
April 25 for the next scheduled meeting.  
 
Tab 2 
Staff-Proposed Rule Making-Fee Simplification; Amendments 
Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator (RC), presented the materials for this tab. RC Laydon 
reported that since the new fee structure started; staff has identified changes and proposed rule 
language changes. RC Laydon and staff recommend filing changes for further discussion 
effective 31 days after filing. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment. There was no public comment. 
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to direct staff to file draft language as proposed by staff.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 4:0 
 
Tab 3 
Staff-Proposed Rule Making- Fee Simplification; Repeals 
RC Laydon presented the materials for this tab. RC Laydon reported that at the January 
commission meeting, staff presented language for rules that needed to be repealed. RC Laydon 
and staff recommend filing the repeals for final action.   
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve repeal language as proposed by staff.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 4:0 
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comments. There was no public comment. 
 
Tab 4 
Petition to Initiate Rule-Making-50/50 Electronic Raffles 
Mari Hortita, NHL Seattle; Amber Carter, Seattle Mariners; and Brian Considine, Legal 
and Legislative Manager (LLM) presented the materials for this tab. LLM Considine 
introduced the petitioners to the commissioners.  Ms. Hortita is Vice President of Community 
Engagement and Philanthropy for NHL Seattle and Amber Carter represents the Seattle 
Mariners. Ms. Hortita provided two handouts to the commissioners (now posted on the agency 
website) and the two representatives presented on behalf of NHL Seattle, the Seattle Mariners, 
Seattle Sounders FC and the Seattle Seahawks.  Ms. Hortita and Ms. Carter requested the 
commissioners accept their petition to enter into rule-making and create rules allowing the 
petitioners’ nonprofit foundations to hold 50/50 raffles using electronic equipment during home 
sports events.  Money raised by the petitioners’ nonprofit foundations will go towards charitable 
causes, including homelessness, diversity and inclusion initiatives, and hockey-related youth 
programs for marginalized youth in the community.  Commissioner Troyer asked if all sports 
teams have their own foundation that money goes through, or does the money go straight to 
another organization. Ms. Hortita answered, “I believe sometimes it goes directly to another 
organization, but at least in the NHL, generally it goes to the foundation and then it's distributed 
out. I think there are certain nights like hockey fights, cancer nights where it may go directly to a 
particular nonprofit.” Commissioner Troyer asked if Ms. Hortita knew what percentage went to 
the organizations for administrative costs and overhead. Ms. Hortita will get back to 



3 
 

Commissioner Troyer with that answer.  LLM Considine added that each team has its own 
foundation with its own focus. Staff can, however, work closely with the petitioners to gather 
information related to nonprofit operations during rule-making for the commissioners to review, 
including projected revenues, charities served, and parts of the state served by each charity.  He 
added that Staff recommends that the commissioners accept the petition with the understanding 
that the raffle equipment will need to be submitted for testing and review during the rule process 
before any rules can be finalized.  Petitioners are aware of this requirement and they do not have 
any objections. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comments. There were no public comments. 
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve the petition and initiate rule-making as proposed by 
staff regarding the 50/ 50 electronic raffles for professional sports venues.  
Commissioner Patterson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 4:0 
 
Tab 5 
2020 Legislative Update 
Brian Considine, LLLM, presented the materials for this tab. LLM Considine discussed 
highlights of the current 2020 session, including passage of: the agency’s two request bills, SB 
6119 and SB 6120; the pull-tab wager increase bill, SB 6357; and the tribal-only sports gambling 
bill, ESHB 2638. LLM Considine thanked Senator Conway for sponsoring the agency bills 
passed by the Legislature and the supplemental budget proviso providing $500,000 for a problem 
gambling prevalence study.  He also thanked Representative Kloba and Senator Holy for their 
support and assistance during the 2020 legislative session. Chair Sizemore recognized LLM 
Considine for his tireless work during the 2020 session and Commissioner Patterson concurred 
and thanked him as well.  
 
Public Comment 
There was no additional public comment.  
 
In closing, Chair Sizemore mentioned that the April Gambling Commission meeting is being 
planned and to watch the Gambling Commission’s website for details.  
 
The meeting reconvened and adjourned at 12:07 PM. 













































Presentation Title
Date
Presenter Name, Title
Unit/Division

Skokomish Indian Tribe
Compact Amendment Hearing
April 9, 2020
Honorable Tom Strong, Vice Chair, Skokomish Tribal Council
David Trujillo, WSGC Director
Julie Lies, WSGC Tribal Liaison



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

Commissioners

Chair Bud Sizemore Vice Chair Julia Patterson VacantEd Troyer Alicia Levy

Appointed by the Governor, with consent of the Senate, for a six-year term



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

Ex Officio Members

Senator
Steve Conway

29th District

Representative
Shelley Kloba

1st District

Representative
Brandon Vick

18th District

Senator
Jeff Holy

6th District



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

1988: Indian Gaming Regulatory Act

“Class III gaming activities shall be lawful on 
Indian lands only if such activities are… 

located in a State that permits such gaming… 
and are conducted in conformance with a 

tribal-state compact…”



Casino-style gaming activities

Criminal and civil jurisdiction

Fees for state regulation

Remedies for breach of contract

Standards of operation

Negotiation Topics

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

1988: Indian Gaming Regulatory Act

“The purpose of this 
chapter is…

to protect such 
gaming as a means 

of generating
tribal revenue.”

“The State must
negotiate in good 

faith
when a compact or 

amendment
is requested by a tribe.”



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

Our Mission

“Protect the public by ensuring 
that gambling is

legal and honest”



No criminal involvement

Gaming conducted fairly, honestly

Gaming limited to authorized activities

Minimize negative impacts on local law 
enforcement, emergency services

Public Protection Interests

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

Gaming Compact Approval Process

Compact 
negotiated by 
WSGC director

Direction from 
state policy makers

Compact 
submitted to 
Commission, 
Legislature



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

Gaming Compact Approval Process

Commission has 45 
days to:

1) Hold pubic 
hearing;

2) Forward 
amendment to 
Governor; or

3) Return to director 
for further 
negotiation

Legislature has 30 
days to review and 

comment

Governor reviews 
and has final 

execution authority

Tribe forwards to 
Secretary of Interior



Skokomish Indian Tribe



•Opened in 2000
•Located on the Skokomish 
Reservation Seven Miles North of 
Shelton on Highway 101

CASINO DETAILS









•13,000 SQ Feet of Gaming and Retail

•175 TLS Gaming Devices

•60 Employees

•Casino Expansions in 2006 and 2013

OPERATION









•Non-Smoking Gaming, Restrooms, 
Refreshment Area and Cash Services Area

•The Drift Restaurant and Bar Open From 
10:30 to Close Daily

•Opens 10 AM Daily, Closes at 2:00 AM 
Weekdays, 3:00 AM on Friday and Saturday

OFFERINGS





•Event Room with a Capacity of 300

•Three Convenient Entrances, Two 
Parking Lots

•Seven 50 Amp RV Spots

RETAIL









Update Forms of Payment for Wagers

Update Firearm Prohibition Provisions

Adds Eligibility and Registration of Gaming Employees

Add Responsible Gambling Program & Problem Gambling Funding

Update Standards of Operation

Clarified Most Favored Nation (MFN)

Clarified Jurisdiction

Summary of Compact Changes

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION



Adds Appendices for:

Wide-Area Progressives

Pooled Electronic Gaming Devices

Technical Revisions of the Tribal Lottery System

Summary of Compact Changes

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION



Presentation Title
Date
Presenter Name, Title
Unit/Division

Questions?



Next Steps

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION



Presentation Title
Date
Presenter Name, Title
Unit/Division

Skokomish Indian Tribe
Compact Amendment Hearing
April 9, 2020
Honorable Tom Strong, Vice Chair, Skokomish Tribal Council
David Trujillo, WSGC Director
Julie Lies, WSGC Tribal Liaison



Financial Status
April 9, 2020
Christopher Stanley
Chief Financial Officer



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

FY 2020 is ending on an interesting note

*Note: Actual revenue from "other sources" includes a $1.25M fine paid in September 2019.

Total Revenue by Category 
2020 Expected 

Revenue 
2020 Actual 

Revenue 
2020 Projected 

Remaining 
2020 Revenue 

Variance 

Activity Licenses - Commercial $          4,630,530 $          3,760,388 $         1,450,587 $             580,445 
Activity Licenses - Non-Profit $             955,285 $             829,753 $            278,608 $             153,076 
Individual Licenses $          2,692,284 $          2,040,934 $            897,428 $             246,078 
Vendor Licenses $          1,423,855 $             989,714 $            450,326 $             16,185 
Tribal Reimbursements $          3,658,340 $          2,676,936 $         1,217,002 $             235,598 
Other Sources* $             292,632 $          1,540,865 $               97,544 $          1,345,777 

Agency Total $       13,652,926 $       11,838,589 $         4,391,495 $          2,577,158 

FY 2020 Revenue by Category/Subsource



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

FY 2020 is ending on an interesting note

Agency Total by Object 
2020 Total 
Budgeted 2020 Spent To-Date 

2020 Projected 
Remaining 

2020 Variance
(Bd-Sp-Pr=Var) 

FTEs 119.25 107.18 12.08 
Salaries $        9,390,636 $        5,303,494 $         3,130,212 $            956,930 
Benefits $        3,340,008 $        1,930,061 $         1,113,336 $            296,611 
Contracts $              14,700 $                       - $                 4,900 $                 9,800 
Goods & Services $        2,535,036 $        2,057,567 $            845,012 $          (367,543)
Travel $           313,560 $           226,078 $            104,520 $            (17,038)
Capital Expenses $           527,784 $           268,223 $            175,928 $              83,633 
Grants & Benefits $                2,712 $                2,025 $                     904 $                  (217)

Agency Total $     16,124,436 $        9,787,448 $         5,374,812 $            962,176 

FY 2020 Sub-Program / Program Index-Level View

The agency has underspent its budget for FY 2020 by 5.96% due to standard vacancy savings.



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

Pre-COVID-19 Financial Projection
*For the remainder of the biennium (through June 2021)

 $(8,000,000)

 $(6,000,000)

 $(4,000,000)

 $(2,000,000)

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Revenue Expenditures Surplus/Deficit CASH ZERO LEVEL WCR HIT



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Scenario: Moderate Recovery (Late April)

 $(8,000,000)

 $(6,000,000)

 $(4,000,000)

 $(2,000,000)

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21

Expenditures Non-Profit Revenue Comm Revenue Individ Revenue Vendor Revenue Tribal Reimbursement Other Revenue Surplus/Deficit CASH ZERO LEVEL WCR HIT

NOTES:
- March includes actuals through 3/27/2020
- Non-Profit, Commercial, and Individual Revenue ramp up slowly to 100% estimate January 2021
- Vendor Revenue ramps up slowly to 100% estimate April 2021
- Tribal Reimbursement doesn't change - stays  at 100% estimate
- Other Revenue reduced to 25% estimate through June 2021
- Expenditures reduced by 5% through June 2021 to reflect actual experience
- IT Modernization not included in July 2020 through June 2021 figures



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Impacts to Gambling Revolving Account Balance

Pre-COVID-19 Scenario: Moderate Recovery Starting Late April
Loss from Starting Balance $449,218 $2,946,177
Projected Ending Balance $6,599,434 $4,102,475
Working Capital Reserve $2,830,698 $2,830,698

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000



Questions?
Christopher Stanley
Chief Financial Officer


	Agenda
	Tab 1 minutes
	Tab 1 License Report
	Tab 2 Compact Hearing
	Tab 3 Financial Status

